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INTRODUCTION 
 
The Public Hearing for project AC-HPP-5-200(010)143 was held on May 2, 2006. The Public Hearing 
was held at the Beulah City Hall from 4:00 PM to 6:00 PM(MT), and at the Hazen City Hall from 6:30 
PM to 8:30 PM(MT). 
 
The meeting was advertised in the April 18th edition of the Beulah Beacon and Hazen Star, and each 
paper also printed a news release in their April 27th edition. The Public Hearing ad was also posted at 
the Beulah and Hazen city halls, and in the office complex entrance at Interstate Engineering in 
Beulah. A copy of the advertisement and news release are included in the Appendix as Exhibit 1. 
 

EXPLANATION OF HEARING PROCESS 
 

PURPOSE 
 
Public hearings in regard to state highway projects, are held to inform the public of proposed highway 
improvements and to make known to the North Dakota Department of Transportation (NDDOT) the 
views of interested parties prior to the completion of the plans. 
 
Such hearings, or acceptable substitute procedures, are required by federal law on highway 
improvement projects involving the expenditure of federal funds. Additionally, these hearings are in 
accordance with the policy of the NDDOT to ensure that proper consideration is given to all social, 
economic, and environmental factors before final decisions are reached. 
 
PROPOSED HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS 
 
The highway improvements proposed and presented at the hearing are a result of careful study, review, 
and consideration of any known factors. Crash history, roadside safety items, traffic volumes, public 
desires from previous input, and engineering and economic factors all played an important role in the 
development of these proposals. Also taken into consideration are the present and future 
environmental, social, and economic needs of the individual, the communities, and the state. The 
reports covering all alternatives considered are available for examination or reproduction. 
 
HEARING PROCEDURE 
 
The hearing was conducted at both locations beginning with an open-house style, allowing attendees to 
view the exhibits, and informally ask questions about various project aspects. Midway through the time 
allotted at each location, a formal presentation was given by personnel from the NDDOT and Interstate 
Engineering, followed by a question and answer period with responses from NDDOT and Interstate 
Engineering personnel. 
 
A slide show was also running for viewing during the informal period, and a slide show was used in 
the presentation.  
 
The participants were encouraged to provide comments, ask questions, and express their opinions on 
any aspect of the work proposed, and it’s impacts to individuals, communities, local and regional 
travel, the environment, and businesses in the surrounding area. 
 
Comment forms were available for those who chose not to speak up at the meeting, or had other 
thoughts or comments that came to mind after the meeting was over. 
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PERSONS PRESENT 
 

The following people were in attendance to present the information and answer questions: 
 
NDDOT – Bismarck          Chad Orn, PE-Design Division; Pam Wegner-Right-of-way 
 
NDDOT – Dickinson District         Rob Rayhorn, PE-Asst. DE 
 
FHWA – ND Division          Kevin Michel, PE 
 
Interstate Engineering, Inc.          Randy Pope, PE; Loren Daede, PE; Donna Zimmerman 
 
The sign-up sheets for all who attended are included in this report in the Appendix as part of Exhibit 4. 
 
THE RECORD 
 
The presentation and Q&A portion of the hearing was recorded by a court reporter, and a copy of the 
transcript is included below. Any comments or questions raised during the Q&A period as well as any 
written comments received during or after the meeting, and the responses to those questions, are 
included later in this report. 
 
The following items were on display or available for viewing during the meeting: 

 
 The meeting handout with a comment section  (Exhibit 2 of Appendix) 
 Typical section for Alternative 1  (Exhibit 3 of Appendix) 
 Pros and cons for Alternative 1  (Exhibit 3 of Appendix) 
 Typical section for Alternative 2  (Exhibit 3 of Appendix) 
 Pros and Cons for Alternative 2  (Exhibit 3 of Appendix) 
 The existing typical section  (Exhibit 3 of Appendix) 
 A list of items yet to be determined for inclusion in the project  (Exhibit 3 of Appendix) 
 A copy of the Project Concept Report 
 A copy of the plan sheets showing the plan view and topographic information 
 Aerial photograph of the project area 
 Copy of a quad map for the project area 

 
These items are included in the Appendix as the Exhibit indicated above. The Concept Report, aerial 
photo, quad map, and plan sheets are not included in the Appendix. 
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                                                                            2 
 
             1             (The proceedings herein were had and made 
 
             2    of record, commencing at 5:03 p.m., M.D.T., 
 
             3    Tuesday, May 2, 2006, as follows:) 
 
             4             MR. ORN:  I am Chad Orn.  I'm with the 
 
             5    North Dakota Department of Transportation Design 
 
             6    Division out of Bismarck.  I want to thank you guys 
 
             7    for attending our public hearing here on Highway 
 
             8    200 between Hazen and -- Hazen and Highway 49 and 
 
             9    Beulah. 
 
            10             Interstate Engineering on behalf of the 
 
            11    North Dakota DOT is writing an environmental 
 
            12    document preparing the plans for this project. 
 
            13    We're going to ask you to please provide your 
 
            14    comments and input.  You can provide it during this 
 
            15    meeting, as it is a formal process and this will 
 
            16    become a transcript.  If you don't want to speak up 
 
            17    now, also please feel free to fill out a comment 
 
            18    card.  That will also become part of our 
 
            19    transcript. 
 
            20             I would like to introduce some people here 
 
            21    that you are welcome to talk to after the meeting 
 
            22    if you have any questions for them.  We have in the 
 
            23    back there in the red, Rob Rayhorn.  He represents 
 
            24    the Dickinson District.  We have Kevin Michel.  He 
 
            25    represents the Federal Highway Division for our 
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                                                                            3 
 
             1    state.  We have Pam Wenger.  She's from our 
 
             2    right-of-way division.  And we have Donna Zimmerman 
 
             3    from Interstate Engineering, we have Randy Pope 
 
             4    from Interstate Engineering, and we have Loren 
 
             5    Daede from Interstate Engineering.  I would like to 
 
             6    turn it over to Loren Daede and he'll go through 
 
             7    some of the project specifics. 
 
             8             MR. POPE:  No.  I get to go first, Chad. 
 
             9             MR. ORN:  Or Randy Pope.  Excuse me. 
 
            10             MR. POPE:  He'll turn it over to me.  What 
 
            11    we're planning on doing since Chad gave the 
 
            12    introduction is kind of just go over -- we're going 
 
            13    to go over the agenda and I'll tell you what we're 
 
            14    going to do, go over the construction history, 
 
            15    what's been done on the project, when it was done, 
 
            16    so you know what exists out there right now, review 
 
            17    what's been done for public participation to date. 
 
            18    We will then talk about what the proposed project 
 
            19    alternatives are.  Loren will do that.  He'll also 
 
            20    go over what the costs are for those alternatives, 
 
            21    talk about what some of the options are for 
 
            22    construction traffic, how that would be handled for 
 
            23    the traffic during construction.  There are a 
 
            24    number of items which are yet to be decided, so 
 
            25    we'll review those.  We'll talk about -- a little 
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             1    bit about the schedule.  And then at the end we 
 
             2    will take any comments that you have on the 
 
             3    project, any questions that you have. 
 
             4             I guess at this point we're going to go 
 
             5    through our presentation.  We have a court 
 
             6    reporter, so there will be a transcript, so when we 
 
             7    get to the questions, we would appreciate it if you 
 
             8    would just say your name and then just make your 
 
             9    comments so that she's got it identified in the 
 
            10    transcript.  Nobody will hold it against you, 
 
            11    that's for sure. 
 
            12             The project, as we start from the west end 
 
            13    and go to the east, was originally graded to 36 
 
            14    foot wide in 1955 with a six-inch aggregate base 
 
            15    placed in '57 and two and a half inches of pavement 
 
            16    on top of that.  The drive slopes were flattened in 
 
            17    '85 and also a two-inch hot bituminous overlay 
 
            18    placed, and that's only for that first -- 
 
            19    approximately a mile. 
 
            20             The next segment was graded in '51 to 36 
 
            21    feet with five inches of aggregate base in 1952, 
 
            22    with two inches of stabilized base and then two and 
 
            23    a half inches of pavement also in '52.  It got an 
 
            24    inch-and-a-half overlay in 1978 and the drive 
 
            25    slopes were flattened in 1990.  So there really 
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             1    hasn't been anything done to the pavement as a 
 
             2    project since '78. 
 
             3             Then there's a short segment on the east 
 
             4    end which was graded in 1979 to 52 feet wide.  That 
 
             5    added six inches of aggregate base, and that was 
 
             6    also in '79 with two inches of bituminous base and 
 
             7    two inches of bituminous surface.  The drive slopes 
 
             8    were also flattened there in 1990.  So again in 
 
             9    that area the last pavement improvement was when it 
 
            10    was constructed in 1979. 
 
            11             At this point I'll turn it over to Donna 
 
            12    and she'll just tell you a little bit about the 
 
            13    public participation, things that have been done to 
 
            14    date. 
 
            15             MS. ZIMMERMAN:  Thank you, Randy.  As part 
 
            16    of the public participation plan, one of the things 
 
            17    that we do is coordinate with the DOT any ads or 
 
            18    anything that goes into the press, just like 
 
            19    meeting notices that you read about the meeting 
 
            20    tonight and also any news releases and things like 
 
            21    that.  We did hold a public input meeting in 
 
            22    November -- the first week in November, and along 
 
            23    with that we do the handouts or work with the DOT 
 
            24    on the information that goes in the handouts. 
 
            25             Along with Chad, I would just like to 
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             1    welcome you and thank you all for coming out to 
 
             2    hopefully express your comments tonight, encourage 
 
             3    you to express your comments, and, as Chad said, 
 
             4    part of this handout -- you're welcome to speak, we 
 
             5    certainly encourage you to speak tonight.  If you 
 
             6    don't feel comfortable doing that, we do have the 
 
             7    form on the back that you can fill out and send in 
 
             8    and there's mailing information.  You can also 
 
             9    e-mail.  For those of you who love the computer and 
 
            10    it's easier for you, you're welcome to do that.  I 
 
            11    guess we encourage, like Randy said, for you to 
 
            12    make comments. 
 
            13             We are also going over to Hazen after this 
 
            14    and doing a similar thing.  But that's what we've 
 
            15    done so far as part of the public participation. 
 
            16    And, once again, thank you.  Thank you for your 
 
            17    comments, too, before.  We did receive quite a 
 
            18    number of comments after the first public input 
 
            19    meeting in November, so that's always good to have. 
 
            20    And please comment again tonight. 
 
            21             At this time, Loren, you're going to go 
 
            22    through the project. 
 
            23             MR. DAEDE:  I'm going to talk a little bit 
 
            24    about the project that is proposed.  What is 
 
            25    proposed is to rebuild the roadway at the location 
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             1    that has been discussed between Beulah and Hazen 
 
             2    and bring it up to the present-day standards for 
 
             3    this type of a roadway.  It is functionally 
 
             4    classified as a principal arterial in the area and 
 
             5    it is on the national highway system, so we would 
 
             6    be bringing it up to the standards that go along 
 
             7    with that type of a highway. 
 
             8             The project is going to involve grading, 
 
             9    and I'll show a couple alternatives, and I think 
 
            10    you've seen them, but it will involve grading to 
 
            11    make the roadbed wide enough to construct a section 
 
            12    that will have two 12-foot lanes and two eight-foot 
 
            13    shoulders.  And the present idea is to do the 
 
            14    grading in one year.  There would be asphalt to 
 
            15    carry traffic -- like a couple inches to carry 
 
            16    traffic through that first winter.  The final 
 
            17    paving lifts would be put on in the following year. 
 
            18             The first alternative that we have 
 
            19    proposed is it's considered a selective grading and 
 
            20    widening.  Now, in that there's certain areas where 
 
            21    there are deficient vertical curves for sight 
 
            22    distance.  Those areas would be completely 
 
            23    regraded.  The asphalt would be taken off to be 
 
            24    recycled later as a base.  Those areas would be 
 
            25    regraded and then the base and surfacing put back 
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             1    on. 
 
             2             In the widening areas, those are areas 
 
             3    where basically the grade isn't that bad and we 
 
             4    would just be widening the shoulders.  In those 
 
             5    areas the existing material, there would be 
 
             6    material added, everything would be blended in 
 
             7    place.  They call it the mine and blend -- mine and 
 
             8    blend is what the state refers to that process as, 
 
             9    but the existing asphalt would be recycled, but it 
 
            10    would be an in-place recycling process. 
 
            11             Alternative 2 would be to take the asphalt 
 
            12    off the entire length, regrade it from end to end. 
 
            13    Even though there wouldn't be a lot of grade 
 
            14    changes in some areas, we would regrade it from end 
 
            15    to end, and then the asphalt would come back on as 
 
            16    a recycled base. 
 
            17             This is the section for alternative 1. 
 
            18    Both alternatives end up with two 12-foot lanes, 
 
            19    two eight-foot shoulders, like I said.  The 
 
            20    pavement thicknesses would be similar base 
 
            21    thicknesses, four and a half inches of asphalt, 18 
 
            22    inches of base.  Of course, it would be very 
 
            23    similar on both of them.  On this one approximately 
 
            24    half the length has a fairly good grade on it, 
 
            25    sight distances are good.  There's no problem 
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             1    anywhere on the project with the horizontal 
 
             2    curvature, so we're not going to need any 
 
             3    realignment.  But to correct sight distances there 
 
             4    would be about half of it that would be regraded 
 
             5    approximately, and the other half would be the 
 
             6    areas where it would just be widened to build the 
 
             7    section. 
 
             8             With alternative 1, it would correct any 
 
             9    deficiencies in the grade, it would widen the 
 
            10    roadway throughout to allow for the placement of 
 
            11    the section that is planned, and, like I said, we 
 
            12    would use the mine and blend on the areas that were 
 
            13    strictly widened, and the asphalt that was removed 
 
            14    would come back as a salvaged base on the areas 
 
            15    that were completely regraded. 
 
            16             Now, the good things about this option, 
 
            17    and they're very similar for both projects 
 
            18    really -- some of the good and bad.  It does update 
 
            19    the geometry and makes the road safer, wider.  You 
 
            20    will end up with a strong pavement throughout.  Any 
 
            21    drainages that are out there will be updated.  And 
 
            22    this option, because we would be leaving the 
 
            23    asphalt in place on approximately half the job, 
 
            24    during grading operation would just be widening of 
 
            25    the shoulders, it would cause a little less traffic 
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             1    disruption for traffic, for vehicles going through 
 
             2    the project. 
 
             3             Cons, there will be some minor wetland 
 
             4    impacts, there will be some right-of-way impacts, 
 
             5    some of the utilities.  There's phone buried all 
 
             6    along there, there's Midcontinent cable, there's 
 
             7    overhead power.  There will be some utility 
 
             8    impacts.  In the areas where we are just mining and 
 
             9    blending, if there's some weak subgrade underneath 
 
            10    there that doesn't show up in the other 
 
            11    operations -- if it's really weak, it will show up, 
 
            12    but if there's some that's a little weaker than you 
 
            13    may like it, there's going to be, of course, no 
 
            14    improvement to that because we're not going to get 
 
            15    down to it.  That is a con on this particular 
 
            16    option.  And the base throughout, even though it 
 
            17    would be pretty much the same thickness width all 
 
            18    the way through, it's not going to be totally 
 
            19    uniform because what gets blended in place isn't 
 
            20    going to be the same as what gets brought in, 
 
            21    blended off site. 
 
            22             Alternate 2 would be the case where all 
 
            23    the asphalt would be taken off, recycled, brought 
 
            24    back as a recycled base.  There again, the pavement 
 
            25    thicknesses, the base thickness, widths, everything 
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             1    is the same as alternate 1.  Here again, it does 
 
             2    correct the grades, any sight distance problems 
 
             3    there are, and we would be using the salvaged base 
 
             4    throughout on this option. 
 
             5             Pros, pretty much the same as far as 
 
             6    geometric updates, pavement strength, the improved 
 
             7    subgrade.  Here, because everything thus far as the 
 
             8    base would be brought back as a recycled base, it 
 
             9    was blended off site, it would be more uniform 
 
            10    throughout, and we would have the chance to improve 
 
            11    the subgrade because everything will be off there, 
 
            12    we'd be able to do subgrade prep and get it uniform 
 
            13    throughout the project.  And, of course, here 
 
            14    again, the drainages would be updated. 
 
            15             The cons, again, there will be some 
 
            16    wetland impacts, there will be some right-of-way 
 
            17    impacts, utility.  I've got some estimated costs 
 
            18    here I'll show you here in a second.  It is a 
 
            19    slightly higher estimated cost.  And because there 
 
            20    would be grading throughout on this one, there 
 
            21    would be a chance to consider -- more strongly 
 
            22    consider detours for this alternative. 
 
            23             These are the costs that are estimated. 
 
            24    Alternative 1 with the selective grading, 6 million 
 
            25    -- almost 6.9 million.  Alternative 2, which is a 
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             1    complete regrade, approximately 7.2 million. 
 
             2             Now, one other issue that will come up or 
 
             3    that we do have here is what to do with traffic 
 
             4    during the construction.  On this slide the project 
 
             5    is shown in red.  The areas that would be 
 
             6    reconstructed using -- in alternate 1 using that -- 
 
             7    you know, selectively grading some areas that had 
 
             8    deficient geometrics would be a short piece at the 
 
             9    end of mile one, it's about a half-mile, and then 
 
            10    starting -- and you're all familiar with Buffalo 
 
            11    Coulee -- starting at the west edge of Buffalo 
 
            12    Coulee on through until you drop -- as the road 
 
            13    drops into the flats just west of Hazen, that's the 
 
            14    other area that would be selectively graded.  And 
 
            15    that is shown on the slide here. 
 
            16             Now, this slide also shows any other 
 
            17    routes that are available in the area.  County 21, 
 
            18    the blue, is both into Beulah and north from the 
 
            19    west end of the job, that is a paved road.  County 
 
            20    Road 26, the green across the top -- bright green, 
 
            21    that is a paved county road.  County 27 is that 
 
            22    kind of orangish-brown, runs through Hazen, that is 
 
            23    also a paved road.  County Road 9, which is the 
 
            24    yellow, about a third of the way in from Hazen 
 
            25    going north is a gravel county road.  There is the 
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             1    purple one that's just shown as a county road, it's 
 
             2    an unnumbered route, that is also a gravel county 
 
             3    route.  Closer to Beulah, just east of Beulah, 
 
             4    County 19 is a paved highway coming north from the 
 
             5    Beulah Industrial Park.  And then that light blue 
 
             6    down south on the bottom there is a gravel county 
 
             7    road.  So those are basically the roads that are 
 
             8    available for possible detour routes to be 
 
             9    considered. 
 
            10             Because of residences and businesses along 
 
            11    there, there will be some traffic through the 
 
            12    project that's going to have to pass through the 
 
            13    project to get to the businesses.  The businesses 
 
            14    at the very west end could get access off of 
 
            15    Highway 49 and County Road 21.  The residences are 
 
            16    mostly toward the east end and they would need 
 
            17    access.  But one thing we want to look at or have 
 
            18    comments from the public on is your ideas of 
 
            19    whether we should consider a hard detour and just 
 
            20    allow some of the traffic that has to be there to 
 
            21    get to the businesses or residences to be there, or 
 
            22    are we going to -- and it's a decision that will be 
 
            23    made, you know, with further discussion, but we 
 
            24    would like your input -- whether to just plan on 
 
            25    sending all the traffic right through the 
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             1    construction.  So, you know, there will be delays. 
 
             2    There will be pilot cars at times, you know, but 
 
             3    that's what we would like your comment on.  I think 
 
             4    Randy will probably elaborate on that a little 
 
             5    more, too. 
 
             6             And I guess at this time I will turn it 
 
             7    over to Randy and he'll discuss a few more of the 
 
             8    decision items. 
 
             9             MR. POPE:  There are then a number of 
 
            10    things that are yet to be determined.  You know, 
 
            11    how the road is going to look has been decided, 
 
            12    but, as Loren described, both alternative number 1 
 
            13    or number 2, which way is that project going to be 
 
            14    built.  Is it going to be uniformly reconstructed 
 
            15    or are we going to spot-reconstruct and spot-widen. 
 
            16             Another alternative that's been looked at 
 
            17    is the installation of a climbing lane, and that's 
 
            18    at Buffalo -- 
 
            19             MR. DAEDE:  Coming west. 
 
            20             MR. POPE:  -- coming west, Buffalo Coulee. 
 
            21    That hasn't been decided yet if that's going to be 
 
            22    part of the final project or not.  And that's one 
 
            23    of the reasons for having a public hearing, is to 
 
            24    say here's what the project is and here's what 
 
            25    we've still got to decide, so that you have an 
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             1    opportunity to affect those final decisions so that 
 
             2    it gets built the way that you would like to see it 
 
             3    or you have a chance to influence that decision in 
 
             4    any way.  And as Loren described the alternatives, 
 
             5    should we set up a detour or should the project be 
 
             6    arranged just to take all the traffic through the 
 
             7    project during construction. 
 
             8             There are a number of turn lanes which we 
 
             9    have to decide if they're going to be part of the 
 
            10    project.  That's as we're going westbound at County 
 
            11    Road 21, a left turn.  This is on North Dakota 49 
 
            12    as you're going northbound where it gets to the 
 
            13    highway, adding a right turn lane there where it 
 
            14    ties into the project actually.  This is as you're 
 
            15    going eastbound and get to County Road 19, that 
 
            16    would be adding a right turn.  This is westbound 
 
            17    and adding a left turn at County Road 19.  So 
 
            18    that's right at the east side of Beulah.  And then 
 
            19    at Hazen, adding -- in the eastbound lane adding a 
 
            20    right turn lane into Hazen.  Those are all items 
 
            21    that have yet to be decided if those are going to 
 
            22    be part of the final project. 
 
            23             MR. CHRISTMANN:  Is there some kind of a 
 
            24    rule of thumb one particular turning lane adds to 
 
            25    the cost of the project?  They all seem like good 
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             1    ideas if they're free, but we know they're not. 
 
             2             MR. POPE:  They would cost something.  The 
 
             3    road has to be wider at that area, there's some 
 
             4    extra pavement, but it's not a huge amount.  I 
 
             5    guess if you could say your name so that she would 
 
             6    know it. 
 
             7             MR. CHRISTMANN:  Randy Christmann. 
 
             8             MR. POPE:  Thanks, Randy.  Randy is a 
 
             9    great name, by the way. 
 
            10             MR. CHRISTMANN:  It should be easy for her 
 
            11    to remember. 
 
            12             MR. POPE:  And, really, the DOT, when 
 
            13    they're making the final decisions what's going to 
 
            14    be included in the project, they'll take into 
 
            15    account cost, but I think you should make your 
 
            16    comments and your input based on what you think 
 
            17    should be part of the project that would be helpful 
 
            18    to the people that live in the area and use it. 
 
            19    Would you agree with that, Chad? 
 
            20             MR. UNRUH:  Chip Unruh.  I live at Zap. 
 
            21    What are the determining factors of whether you do 
 
            22    or don't, like on County 19?  The volume of 
 
            23    traffic, of course, would dictate, I suppose.  But 
 
            24    does the DOT have some standard that says, you 
 
            25    know, it's feasible to do so with this volume of 
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             1    traffic? 
 
             2             MR. POPE:  They have warrants. 
 
             3             MR. UNRUH:  You have to have something 
 
             4    whether it's feasible. 
 
             5             MR. POPE:  They have warrants and they 
 
             6    have been looked at.  One of the problems that they 
 
             7    have is some of the traffic data was a little bit 
 
             8    out of date from what's happened with improvements 
 
             9    to some of the county road system, so it might be 
 
            10    slightly -- well, it might be significantly 
 
            11    different than the traffic that they're using from 
 
            12    before. 
 
            13             MR. ORN:  Accidents also contribute to the 
 
            14    warrants.  It's not just based on traffic.  It's 
 
            15    also based on safety warrants based on accidents. 
 
            16    If there's a high accident rate there and it 
 
            17    contributes, say, to rear-end collisions, they'll 
 
            18    say, well, maybe we can put a left turn lane in 
 
            19    there, then there won't be the rear-end -- we can 
 
            20    get rid of the rear-end collisions.  So that 
 
            21    warrants are based on a number of factors, traffic 
 
            22    being one of them and also the accident 
 
            23    possibility, also. 
 
            24             MR. UNRUH:  That makes sense. 
 
            25             MR. POPE:  Any other comments? 
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             1             MR. UNRUH:  I have another question on 
 
             2    lighting on intersections.  Do you have the one 
 
             3    right entering Hazen and the one on 21 over here 
 
             4    and the one on 49? 
 
             5             MR. POPE:  We lost one slide somewhere 
 
             6    because that's another decision item.  Actually, 
 
             7    there is some current lighting, and that lighting 
 
             8    will remain when the project is reconstructed.  We 
 
             9    can redo the lighting, but in order to redo it, it 
 
            10    requires a local agency to match it 50 percent.  So 
 
            11    that decision needs to be made going into the final 
 
            12    project, and nobody has really stepped up to say, 
 
            13    yeah, we're willing to pay the 50 percent and 
 
            14    maintain it.  So at this point we're assuming that 
 
            15    must mean what's there is probably going to be good 
 
            16    enough.  Loren, you haven't heard any comments? 
 
            17             MR. DAEDE:  No.  And as I was writing the 
 
            18    concept report, I sent letters to the City of 
 
            19    Beulah, City of Hazen, and to Mercer County to, you 
 
            20    know, ask them that question.  I basically told 
 
            21    them that this is the lighting that's there.  If 
 
            22    you want any -- if you would like to -- and I 
 
            23    explained the funding, you know, they would end up 
 
            24    paying for half of any additional lighting plus 
 
            25    they would take over the maintenance and 
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             1    operational costs of the lighting, and I have heard 
 
             2    no response from any of them.  So the plan would 
 
             3    be, as I understand it, whatever lighting is there, 
 
             4    reset it. 
 
             5             MR. POPE:  So you won't lose any. 
 
             6             MR. DAEDE:  We haven't heard anything so 
 
             7    far from any entity that they would want more. 
 
             8             MR. UNRUH:  Evidently, in other words, 
 
             9    they're probably assuming it's adequate what you 
 
            10    have or they would have responded to you. 
 
            11             MR. DAEDE:  I've had no response. 
 
            12             MR. POPE:  Well, if there are no more 
 
            13    comments, we want to thank you for -- 
 
            14             MR. KELLER:  Bill Keller.  On that County 
 
            15    19, are they talking about a turning -- both turn 
 
            16    lanes or just one? 
 
            17             MR. UNRUH:  Both. 
 
            18             MR. POPE:  Right, from each direction. 
 
            19             MR. KELLER:  One from each direction. 
 
            20             MR. POPE:  Westbound it would be a left 
 
            21    turn lane.  Eastbound it would be a right turn 
 
            22    lane.  Correct, that's something to be decided. 
 
            23             MR. KELLER:  Thank you. 
 
            24             MR. CHRISTMANN:  Randy Christmann again. 
 
            25    Two questions.  The .55 acres of wetlands to be 
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             1    impacted, can you identify those, which they are? 
 
             2             MR. DAEDE:  Yeah.  It's not like it's one 
 
             3    big segment of wetland anyplace. 
 
             4             MR. CHRISTMANN:  Oh, it's little pieces. 
 
             5             MR. DAEDE:  Little pieces where, you know, 
 
             6    there's -- some of them are wetlands that have been 
 
             7    previously identified on natural wetland inventory 
 
             8    maps, some of them are just small, isolated 
 
             9    wetlands, probably created just because of poor 
 
            10    drainage along the project, but they have wetland 
 
            11    characteristics.  The number there includes 
 
            12    everything, whether it's created wetland or wetland 
 
            13    that has been identified previously.  Yeah, they're 
 
            14    not -- they're just small pieces.  Edges of 
 
            15    existing wetlands, is what they are. 
 
            16             MR. CHRISTMANN:  Then, secondly, anywhere 
 
            17    where fences need to be disturbed along the 
 
            18    project, does the state do like what the county 
 
            19    does and build a temporary fence and then replace 
 
            20    it where it belongs when the project is completed, 
 
            21    or are the farmers paid for fencing and have to 
 
            22    take care of it themselves, or what happens there? 
 
            23             MS. WENGER:  If there's temporary fences 
 
            24    needed, you'll be paid for temporary fencing. 
 
            25             MR. CHRISTMANN:  We'll be paid so we have 
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             1    to get it done ourselves? 
 
             2             MS. WENGER:  Yes.  Yes.  You'll be paid 
 
             3    for it or you can have a contractor do it for you. 
 
             4             MR. ORN:  That will be reworked -- that is 
 
             5    something that will probably be reworked as part of 
 
             6    our right-of-way stipulation, if we impact your 
 
             7    fence, we'll say either -- we'll give you a certain 
 
             8    amount of money, you can find somebody to redo your 
 
             9    fence, or we can have it done as part of the 
 
            10    contractor, and the contractor -- prime contractor 
 
            11    charges the project for replacing it.  We're not 
 
            12    going to go tear out your fence and say, sorry, we 
 
            13    wrecked your fence, it's your responsibility.  If 
 
            14    we impact your fence as part of construction, we 
 
            15    will put, like I said, a temporary fence in place 
 
            16    of it so your cattle aren't running out there, 
 
            17    whatever else you got out there, and then we'll 
 
            18    replace the fence, if needed, if we impact it.  If 
 
            19    we don't impact it -- if you've got a bad fence and 
 
            20    we're not impacting it, we won't replace it. 
 
            21             MR. UNRUH:  I have one more question. 
 
            22             MR. POPE:  Go ahead, Chip. 
 
            23             MR. UNRUH:  What's the life expectancy of 
 
            24    alternate 1 versus alternate 2 of that road?  There 
 
            25    has to be some difference because of the 
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             1    construction, and the cost is not that different. 
 
             2             MR. DAEDE:  I guess I would anticipate the 
 
             3    life expectancy to be similar for both of them.  I 
 
             4    wouldn't expect any big difference in that. 
 
             5             MR. POPE:  I think the pavement design 
 
             6    assumptions they use the same life, 20 years. 
 
             7             MR. ORN:  Yeah, 20 years. 
 
             8             MR. POPE:  So, you know, they're 
 
             9    designed -- the way they're designed, it was to 
 
            10    have the same life.  They would move somewhat 
 
            11    differently, you would think, but still that would 
 
            12    be how long they think the pavement will last. 
 
            13             MR. UNRUH:  On the surface it appears that 
 
            14    alternate 2, the more expensive one, will make a 
 
            15    better and safer road and it might be cost- 
 
            16    effective. 
 
            17             MR. POPE:  Thank you, Chip. 
 
            18             MR. KELLER:  I would agree with that. 
 
            19    Bill Keller. 
 
            20             MR. ALLMENDINGER:  Jim Allmendinger. 
 
            21    What's the time frame difference on alternate 1 and 
 
            22    alternate 2?  I mean, is it going to take 
 
            23    three-quarters of a season for one, or is it the 
 
            24    same time frame? 
 
            25             MR. DAEDE:  I really couldn't answer that, 
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             1    not knowing what the contractor's operation would 
 
             2    be like, but I would think they would be very 
 
             3    similar as far as when things would be disturbed. 
 
             4    I wouldn't think there would be a lot of 
 
             5    difference, especially if the mine and blends were 
 
             6    done during the same construction season as the 
 
             7    grading.  I just wouldn't expect there would be 
 
             8    that much difference in start to finish of the 
 
             9    project. 
 
            10             MR. ALLMENDINGER:  You don't think 
 
            11    detouring the traffic would speed it up? 
 
            12             MR. ORN:  Even if we provide a detour, 
 
            13    we'd still need to provide some access on the 
 
            14    current roads to some of the businesses or 
 
            15    residences along there unless there's an alternate 
 
            16    route, but if there isn't, we're going to hamper 
 
            17    the contractor with that, but there may not be as 
 
            18    much traffic, it may be easier to do.  We're still 
 
            19    going to have some access.  We can't close off 
 
            20    access to a business or residence without providing 
 
            21    something reasonable. 
 
            22             MR. ALLMENDINGER:  Then also on County 
 
            23    Road 21 you have a westbound turning lane and not 
 
            24    an eastbound turning lane? 
 
            25             MR. DAEDE:  There is an eastbound turning 
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             1    lane that exists there now. 
 
             2             MR. ALLMENDINGER:  So that would stay? 
 
             3             MR. DAEDE:  That would stay. 
 
             4             MR. POPE:  These are changes. 
 
             5             MR. DAEDE:  These are changes, yeah.  Also 
 
             6    at the west end of the job, you know, where it 
 
             7    butts up to 49 and County Road 21, there's turn 
 
             8    lanes.  Those will stay.  If the standards -- the 
 
             9    lane standards or whatever are deficient, they will 
 
            10    be brought up to the new standards.  If they're 
 
            11    there, they stay.  These are additions. 
 
            12             MR. POPE:  Any other comments?  I guess at 
 
            13    this point we thank you guys for coming.  We will 
 
            14    -- you don't have to make your comment necessarily 
 
            15    today.  As Donna said, and Chad, also, there is a 
 
            16    place on the handout to make a comment up till 
 
            17    the -- 
 
            18             MS. ZIMMERMAN:  17th, I believe.  Yes. 
 
            19             MR. POPE:  Until the 17th, and those will 
 
            20    all become part of the record of this hearing just 
 
            21    as if you had made it here.  So thank you again, 
 
            22    appreciate you coming to this. 
 
            23             (Concluded at 5:35 p.m., M.D.T., the same 
 
            24    day.) 
 
            25                         -------- 
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             1             (The proceedings herein were had and made 
 
             2    record, commencing at 7:30 p.m., M.D.T., Tuesday, 
 
             3    May 2, 2006, as follows:) 
 
             4             MR. ORN:  Welcome.  I'm Chad Orn.  I'm 
 
             5    with the North Dakota Department of Transportation 
 
             6    Design Division out of Bismarck.  I want to thank 
 
             7    you guys for attending our public hearing on 
 
             8    Highway 200 from the junction of 49 to Hazen. 
 
             9             Interstate Engineering on behalf of the 
 
            10    North Dakota DOT is writing an environmental 
 
            11    document and completing the plans that will be used 
 
            12    to construct this project.  We would like you to 
 
            13    please provide your comments and input during 
 
            14    this -- this is a public hearing, so there will be 
 
            15    a -- you can see it's a formal transcript.  This 
 
            16    will be recorded and documented.  Also, if you're 
 
            17    not comfortable with speaking up at the time, you 
 
            18    can fill out a comment card that will be available 
 
            19    in the back, and you can fill that out and that 
 
            20    will also become part of our formal transcript. 
 
            21             I would like to introduce a few people 
 
            22    here that you're welcome to talk with and a few 
 
            23    people that will be talking.  Back in the corner 
 
            24    there in the red we've got Rod Rayhorn.  He's with 
 
            25    the Dickinson District.  We've got Kevin Michel. 
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             1    He's with the FHWA out of Bismarck.  We've got Pam 
 
             2    Wenger.  She's with the North Dakota DOT 
 
             3    right-of-way.  We've got Donna Zimmerman.  She's 
 
             4    with Interstate Engineering, Loren Daede with 
 
             5    Interstate Engineering, and the next guy to speak 
 
             6    is Randy Pope, who's also with Interstate 
 
             7    Engineering. 
 
             8             MR. POPE:  Thank you, Chad.  We plan on 
 
             9    going over the history of the road, what's been 
 
            10    done out there.  Donna is going to talk a little 
 
            11    bit about public participation.  We're also going 
 
            12    to talk about what the alternatives are for the 
 
            13    proposed project, give you an idea of what 
 
            14    construction costs are expected to be, talk about 
 
            15    traffic during construction and what the 
 
            16    alternatives are for handling that.  We're also 
 
            17    going to discuss a number of items which are yet to 
 
            18    be determined.  A big reason for having the public 
 
            19    hearing is to get your input on what the project is 
 
            20    proposed and what items still need to be determined 
 
            21    so you have a chance to affect that.  We'll also go 
 
            22    over the schedule, and then at the end we would 
 
            23    love to have you give us any comments you've got or 
 
            24    any input that you've got or ask any questions that 
 

25 you would like to ask. 
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1             One thing I would like to ask you to do, 
 
             2    though, when we get to the questions part, if you 
 
             3    could say your name first -- she's doing the 
 
             4    transcript -- just so that she can identify -- we 
 
             5    won't hold it against you, don't worry about that, 
 
             6    but so that she can identify who's making the 
 
             7    statement and get it in the transcript correctly. 
 
             8             The project has been built sort of in 
 
             9    different segments because of the way it is out in 
 
            10    the field.  The west mile was graded in 1955 to a 
 
            11    dirt width of 36 feet.  In '57 then it got six 
 
            12    inches aggregate base.  The same year it got two 
 
            13    and a half inches of hot bituminous pavement on the 
 
            14    top.  In 1985 the slopes were flattened and at the 
 
            15    same time a two-inch overlay was put on that one 
 
            16    mile. 
 
            17             The next about five miles or so were 
 
            18    graded in 1951 to 36 feet.  In '52 it got five 
 
            19    inches of aggregate base, two inches of stabilized 
 
            20    base and a two-and-a-half-inch hot bituminous 
 
            21    pavement top.  In 1978 an inch and a half of 
 
            22    pavement was added to that as an overlay, and the 
 
            23    drive slopes were flattened in 1990. 
 
            24             The last little segment going into the 
 

25 west side of Hazen was graded to 52 feet in 1979, 
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            1    six inches of aggregate base at that same '79, with 
 
             2    a two-inch bituminous base and a two-inch 
 
             3    bituminous surface.  So nothing has been done to 
 
             4    those east miles since 1979 from the standpoint of 
 
             5    overlays of the pavement.  And in that last short 
 
             6    piece, the drive slopes were flattened also in 
 
             7    1990. 
 
             8             At this point I'll turn it over to Loren 
 
             9    -- I'll turn it over to Donna.  She can talk about 
 
            10    public participation. 
 
            11             MS. ZIMMERMAN:  Loren, you can do that if 
 
            12    you want.  Thanks, Randy.  I just wanted to take a 
 
            13    couple minutes just to let you know a little bit 
 
            14    the public participation portion.  One of the 
 
            15    things we do under that umbrella is work with the 
 
            16    DOT in comprising and coordinating the 
 
            17    advertisements about these meetings that go into 
 
            18    your local papers, as well as any news releases and 
 
            19    such that comes out so that you know ahead of time 
 
            20    that the meetings are coming up. 
 
            21             We did hold a public input meeting last 
 
            22    November and we received lots of comments after 
 
            23    that meeting, and those comments are -- as Randy 
 
            24    and Chad both said, they're taken very seriously 
 

25 and they become part of the report.  So a big thank 
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             1    you for all the people who did send in comments, 
 
             2    and I would, once again, like to encourage you to 
 
             3    do so again tonight.  Those comments can be taken I 
 
             4    believe it's until May 17th.  And that information, 
 
             5    as Chad mentioned, is on the handout in the back of 
 
             6    the room, so, by all means, if you haven't had a 
 
             7    chance or don't speak, maybe take one with you 
 
             8    because you might think of something later on, so 
 
             9    you've got some time yet to submit.  There's also 
 
            10    an e-mail address on there that you can also send 
 
            11    it to.  We also work with the DOT to coordinate the 
 
            12    information that is in those handouts. 
 
            13             So, once again, thank you for coming and 
 
            14    thank you for your participation, and we encourage 
 
            15    you to speak up tonight and let us know your 
 
            16    thoughts or else write them out and leave them with 
 
            17    us as you leave.  Thank you.  We want Loren now. 
 
            18    Now it's your turn. 
 
            19             MR. DAEDE:  A little bit about the 
 
            20    proposed project.  I guess the locations have been 
 
            21    stated.  It starts at Highway 49 north of Beulah 
 
            22    and comes into the west edge of Hazen here.  The 
 
            23    project is to rebuild that road from Beulah to 
 
            24    Hazen and bring it up to standards for this 
 
            25    classification of highway.  It is functionally 
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1    classed as a principal arterial and it is on the 
 
             2    national highway system, so in the design 
 
             3    guidelines those are the standards that this 
 
             4    highway will be planned to be brought up to. 
 
             5             The project will involve grading to widen 
 
             6    it out to accept the paving section that is being 
 
             7    planned, and after the first year -- the grading 
 
             8    will be planned in the first year -- it would have 
 
             9    a lift of asphalt on it to carry the traffic 
 
            10    through the winter and the final lifts of pavement 
 
            11    would happen in the second year. 
 
            12             We're presenting two alternatives here 
 
            13    tonight.  The first alternative will be one that 
 
            14    will -- it will be selective grading in some areas 
 
            15    to take care of the geometrics, take care of the 
 
            16    sight distance, get that up to standards.  In some 
 
            17    areas the grades are fine as far as sight distance 
 
            18    standards.  Those would be just widened, existing 
 
            19    pavement would remain in place, shoulders would be 
 
            20    widened out, and then later everything brought up 
 
            21    to the same paving section.  In those areas that 
 
            22    would be just widened the asphalt would remain in 
 
            23    place and would be mixed with new material to form 
 
            24    the base.  In the areas that are totally regraded 
 

25 the asphalt would be taken off first and then 
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1    brought back as a blended base so the existing 
 
             2    asphalt would be reused. 
 
             3             The selective grading for the areas that 
 
             4    would be regraded in this alternative and the areas 
 
             5    that would be just widened are -- the areas that 
 
             6    would be just widened, each comprise approximately 
 
             7    half of the project length. 
 
             8             Alternative 2 would be an alternative 
 
             9    where we would remove the surfacing from the entire 
 
            10    roadway and regrade and bring -- the surfacing 
 
            11    would then come back as a blended base.  Even with 
 
            12    the regrading option, there's several areas where 
 
            13    the grade wouldn't change much.  It would just be 
 
            14    down to bare subgrade and work from there on up. 
 
            15             This is a picture of the typical section 
 
            16    for alternative 1.  Like I say, it's going to take 
 
            17    -- the areas that would be totally regraded, the 
 
            18    areas that would be strictly widened, about half 
 
            19    the job.  Throughout the whole project, and this is 
 
            20    going to be for both alternative 1 and 2, but 
 
            21    throughout the whole project, as Randy had stated, 
 
            22    most of the project was graded back in the '50s to 
 
            23    a subgrade width of 36 feet.  Subgrade width now 
 
            24    will be 70 feet.  And the section plan is about 18 
 

25 inches of base, four and a half inches ultimately 
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1    of hot bituminous pavement on top of that.  The 
 
             2    finished width will be two 12-foot lanes with 
 
             3    eight-foot shoulders. 
 
             4             So alternative 1, it corrects any 
 
             5    deficiencies in grade, sight distance problems. 
 
             6    They would be widened to accept the full 44-foot 
 
             7    finished top.  Like I say, we would use the mine 
 
             8    and blend scenario for the base in the areas where 
 
             9    it was just widened and bring the removed salvaged 
 
            10    base back -- or salvaged bituminous material back 
 
            11    as a base -- as a blended base. 
 
            12             The good thing about alternative 1, it 
 
            13    does update the geometrics and safety aspects of 
 
            14    the project.  It does provide a good, strong 
 
            15    pavement.  The drainage would be updated.  And 
 
            16    since the pavement -- during the grading operations 
 
            17    and for traffic that's passing through the project, 
 
            18    since the pavement would remain in place for during 
 
            19    grading operations, it would cause less disruption 
 
            20    to any traffic on the project.  They would have a 
 
            21    paved road to run on. 
 
            22             The bad parts, and these are going to be 
 
            23    similar in both, but the cons as far as this 
 
            24    alternative, there are some wetland impacts, there 
 

25 will be some right-of-way impacts.  There are some 
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             1    utilities, be similar in both.  There's a lot of 
 
             2    phone buried out there, there's some electrical, 
 
             3    both overhead and underground, cable TV is buried 
 
             4    over most of it, so is fiber optics, so there will 
 
             5    be some utility impacts. 
 
             6             In the areas where we would be just 
 
             7    widening, if there was some weaker subgrade 
 
             8    areas -- and this is a con -- it might not be found 
 
             9    out just from the normal routing of construction 
 
            10    equipment, so there could be areas where the 
 
            11    subgrade maybe should have been worked on and won't 
 
            12    be, which would be a negative on this one.  And the 
 
            13    base, since some of it would be blended off site, 
 
            14    some of it blended on site or right in place, it's 
 
            15    not going to be uniform throughout the whole 
 
            16    project. 
 
            17             Alternative 2, again, we end up with 
 
            18    basically the same section, 18 inches of blended 
 
            19    base.  The only thing, this will be blended off 
 
            20    site and brought back in.  The asphalt would be 
 
            21    recycled off site.  Driving down the road they're 
 
            22    going to look the same, you're going to have two 
 
            23    12-foot lanes, two eight-foot shoulders, the 
 
            24    inslopes are 6 to 1, which right now they're 4 to 
 

25 1.  For every four feet you go up, you go down one, 
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1    now it will be six feet up and one down, so there 
 
             2    will be flatter slopes.  Both projects will end up 
 
             3    looking the same as you drive down the road. 
 
             4             So here again, it takes care of the same 
 
             5    types of problems, it corrects any geometric 
 
             6    problems.  It would be a salvage based throughout. 
 
             7    The pros, it updates geometrics.  You'll have a 
 
             8    good, strong pavement.  The subgrade would be 
 
             9    exposed throughout, so that would be prepared 
 
            10    uniformly throughout the length of the project. 
 
            11    The section, the base would be the same throughout. 
 
            12    And, of course, any drainages would be updated. 
 
            13             Here again, there's some wetland impacts, 
 
            14    there's right-of-way that's going to be impacted, 
 
            15    utility impacts.  And I've got some cost estimates 
 
            16    coming up here.  I do have this one estimated at a 
 
            17    slightly higher cost.  And on this one, because 
 
            18    everything will be tore up at one point or another, 
 
            19    there is more of a likeliness of detours on this. 
 
            20             These are the costs that were estimated. 
 
            21    Alternative 1 at about 6.9 million and alternative 
 
            22    2, about 7.2 million. 
 
            23             Another item that comes into play is just 
 
            24    a question on what to do with traffic during 
 

25 construction.  In this map the red line is the 
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             1    project, and you can see for alternative 1 there's 
 
             2    a couple areas, one of them at the end of the first 
 
             3    mile and one of them starting at the west edge of 
 
             4    Buffalo Coulee and continuing on to just below 
 
             5    where you drop into the valley here west of Hazen. 
 
             6    Those are the areas that have been shown as areas 
 
             7    to be regraded.  The rest of the area the pavement 
 
             8    will stay in place on alternative 1.  Alternative 
 
             9    2, of course, the pavement would be taken off 
 
            10    throughout. 
 
            11             But the roads -- this map shows the roads 
 
            12    that are available.  Of course, County 21, 26 and 
 
            13    27 coming back into Hazen, those are all paved 
 
            14    roads, paved routes, county routes.  21 goes, of 
 
            15    course, north of Beulah; 26, east-west between the 
 
            16    two cities.  The road right east of Beulah, County 
 
            17    21, is paved.  County 19, which is shown in green 
 
            18    there, is a paved road coming out of Beulah. 
 
            19    County Road 9 and that unnumbered county road up 
 
            20    there in the purple, those are both gravel roads. 
 
            21    And then that very light blue, the back road, the 
 
            22    River Road, whatever, between here and Hazen is 
 
            23    also gravel road. 
 
            24             But this shows the roads that would be 
 

25 available for detours.  And traffic will to some 
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1    extent need to be left on the project because of 
 
             2    residences, because of businesses that are adjacent 
 
             3    to the project.  Some traffic will remain there, 
 
             4    but there hasn't been any definite decision made on 
 
             5    whether or not to put a permanent -- put a detour 
 
             6    in for the life of the project or to select 
 
             7    different routes.  And Randy will expound on it a 
 
             8    little more, but that's one input we would like 
 
             9    from any of the public, just get your idea of what 
 
            10    you think of a detour, should we route all the 
 
            11    traffic through the project or detour the bulk of 
 
            12    it, get your ideas on it. 
 
            13             Randy is going to cover some items that 
 
            14    need to be decided yet. 
 
            15             MR. POPE:  Thanks.  A bunch of these have 
 
            16    already been talked about, but what we still have 
 
            17    to decide then is, is the project going to be built 
 
            18    according to alternate number 1 or number 2, a 
 
            19    total reconstruction or the part reconstruction and 
 
            20    part widening?  Should a climbing lane be 
 
            21    installed?  That's one thing that hasn't been 
 
            22    decided yet.  Again, if you have any input on that, 
 
            23    I would encourage you to make that.  Another 
 
            24    alternative is, would we establish a detour 
 

25 specifically for this project or would the project 
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1.    be designed to carry the traffic through the 
 
             2    project while it was totally being constructed? 
 
             3             Another thing that hasn't been decided yet 
 
             4    is on the lighting.  Right now there is lighting in 
 
             5    several areas, mostly around Beulah and Hazen. 
 
             6    There could be some improvements or some changes in 
 
             7    that, but there would need to be a 50 percent local 
 
             8    share paid for on that and those improvements would 
 
             9    need to be operated and maintained by the local 
 
            10    body that wanted those improvements made. 
 
            11    Currently the project has got as part of it leaving 
 
            12    it, working around and resetting all the lighting 
 
            13    that's there now, but no improvements, so it needs 
 
            14    to be -- a final decision made if there's going to 
 
            15    be anything added.  And I guess Loren has made some 
 
            16    contacts.  Maybe you could go into that.  Do you 
 
            17    think that's worth it, Chad, to talk about that? 
 
            18             MR. DAEDE:  I did -- while during the 
 
            19    writing of the concept report, I did send letters 
 
            20    to the Cities of Hazen and Beulah and to Mercer 
 
            21    County just letting them know, you know, of the 
 
            22    lighting situation, if there were -- if anybody saw 
 
            23    that they wanted lighting improvements, then, well, 
 
            24    as Randy said, they would have to pay 50 percent of 
 

25 any new improvements plus pay the maintenance and 
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1    operations of those lights until as long as they're 
 
             2    there, I guess.  But I haven't received any 
 
             3    response from either city or from the county 
 
             4    commissioners. 
 
             5             MR. POPE:  So that's yet to be determined, 
 
             6    but if there is no more input, I would assume it 
 
             7    would be maintained the way it is. 
 
             8             Some items to be determined, currently the 
 
             9    project will put back any turn lanes that exist, 
 
            10    but there are several additional turn lanes that 
 
            11    are being considered that, depending on the final 
 
            12    decision, may or may not be part of the project. 
 
            13    That would be at -- as you're going westbound, when 
 
            14    you get to County Road 21, a left turn lane; on 
 
            15    Highway 49, as you're northbound over by Beulah, 
 
            16    adding a right turn lane onto 200; if you're on 
 
            17    eastbound 200, when you get to County Road 19, 
 
            18    adding a right turn lane; again, as you get to 
 
            19    County Road 19 and you're westbound, adding a left 
 
            20    turn lane; and then at Hazen, as you're eastbound, 
 
            21    right at the east end of the project, adding a 
 
            22    right turn lane at that point.  So those are items 
 
            23    that still need to be decided if they're going to 
 
            24    be part of the project or not. 
 

25 Right now the schedule is, tentatively 
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1    it's going to be done in 2007, which would have 
 
             2    some pavement at the end of that, then the final 
 
             3    paving would be done the next year.  The last lift 
 
             4    of asphalt would be done during the summer of 2008. 
 
             5    That's the current schedule. 
 
             6             I guess at this point we would certainly 
 
             7    love to answer any questions you have, have you 
 
             8    give us any comments that you have, any 
 
             9    suggestions.  We just ask if you've got any, say 
 
            10    your name first and go ahead and ask those. 
 
            11             MR. LATIMER:  Latimer, Lyle.  I'm not 
 
            12    concerned about using the county roads for detours. 
 
            13    Who's going to keep the upkeep?  Are they going to 
 
            14    regrade or do any part of it or do some restoring? 
 
            15             MR. POPE:  Well, if they were designated 
 
            16    as a detour, that would be -- there would need to 
 
            17    be maintenance of the detour.  That might be one of 
 
            18    the reasons why it's not done.  Go ahead, Rob. 
 
            19             MR. RAYHORN:  We would get together with 
 
            20    the county, review the road, the condition that 
 
            21    it's in.  When the project would be done, we would 
 
            22    make sure the road is in as good or better 
 
            23    condition than it is now.  If it means we have to 
 
            24    dig some spots out and overlay it, that's what we 
 
            25    would do. 
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1             MR. ORN:  Basically they do a 
 
             2    preinspection, then a final inspection, then during 
 
             3    the process of it being used the contractor would 
 
             4    be responsible for maintaining.  If a hole shows up 
 
             5    during that process of using it as a detour, he 
 
             6    would be responsible for fixing that and keeping it 
 
             7    operable, then at the end fix it back up to its 
 
             8    original condition, and that would be part of the 
 
             9    project. 
 
            10             MR. LATIMER:  And that would be done with 
 
            11    what personnel?  County engineer? 
 
            12             MR. RAYHORN:  Contractors would fix that. 
 
            13             MR. ORN:  The contractor would fix the 
 
            14    roadway. 
 
            15             MR. LATIMER:  I know that. 
 
            16             MR. ORN:  The initial meeting would be 
 
            17    with the county, to go over it with the county. 
 
            18             MR. LATIMER:  But somebody is going to 
 
            19    have to go out there and decide what kind of shape 
 
            20    it's going to be in when you start and when it's 
 
            21    done. 
 
            22             MR. POPE:  Usually the county road foreman 
 
            23    is the one that would go around. 
 
            24             MR. LATIMER:  We don't want that expense 
 

25 back. 
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1             MR. POPE:  And that may be a consideration 
 
             2    in how the DOT looks at it.  Like I said, there's 
 
             3    two options they can have.  They can design it to 
 
             4    take the traffic on the roadway or they can 
 
             5    establish a detour.  So is your comment that you 
 
             6    would just as soon that they took the traffic on 
 
             7    the roadway? 
 
             8             MR. LATIMER:  I don't mind if they use the 
 
             9    county system as long as it is put back into shape. 
 
            10             MR. POPE:  Okay. 
 
            11             MR. LATIMER:  And another question to that 
 
            12    is, the county is also looking at upgrading County 
 
            13    27, and we don't want to be doing that at the same 
 
            14    time that this is going to be done.  When is this 
 
            15    project going to be done? 
 
            16             MR. POPE:  Currently scheduled for 2007. 
 
            17             MR. LATIMER:  We were looking at the same 
 
            18    thing. 
 
            19             MR. RAYHORN:  Before designating it as a 
 
            20    haul road, we would get together before the county 
 
            21    before the plans are finalized and make sure 
 
            22    everything fit, and if it doesn't fit with the 
 
            23    county's schedule, we absolutely won't use that 
 
            24    route. 
 
            25             MR. LATIMER:  Thanks, Rob. 
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1             MR. FROVART:  Steve Frovart, City of 
 
             2    Hazen.  I guess the one thing that I would really 
 
             3    like to see you strongly consider is the east -- or 
 
             4    the right turn lane right here in the west end of 
 
             5    town.  People are doing that now.  If you go out 
 
             6    there and look, you see where the grass is kind of 
 
             7    killed off right in that area where you would have 
 
             8    a turn lane, so people are doing it, and it's not a 
 
             9    safe thing to be doing, and this turn lane would 
 
            10    certainly add safety to that intersection.  So I 
 
            11    certainly hope that gets reconsidered and put back 
 
            12    into the plan. 
 
            13             MR. POPE:  Thank you.  Anybody -- any 
 
            14    other comments?  I guess the other thing I want to 
 
            15    make sure, if you don't feel comfortable making a 
 
            16    comment now, as Donna said, those attached sheets 
 
            17    are the same thing as -- they'll be part of the 
 
            18    transcript of this meeting, too.  Whether you fill 
 
            19    them out and leave them tonight or send them in 
 
            20    before the 17th, those will all be part of the 
 
            21    transcript of the hearing.  So that's up to you, 
 
            22    however you want to make your comments, we accept 
 
            23    them all. 
 
            24             MR. DAEDE:  Any way you want to get a 
 

25 written comment in, e-mail or however it is. 
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1             MR. CHRISTMANN:  I'm Albert Christmann. 
 
             2    I'm wondering, speaking about turn-off lanes on 
 
             3    these roads.  We have a number of approaches 
 
             4    because we farm and ranch out here and we rent the 
 
             5    neighbor's land and he has a number of approaches. 
 
             6    When this new road goes in or is rebuilt, are we 
 
             7    going to have those approaches, or are a lot of 
 
             8    those approaches not going to exist no more? 
 
             9             MR. RAYHORN:  We normally meet with the -- 
 
            10    talk to the landowner.  If it looks like there's an 
 
            11    approach -- or there's a fence running straight 
 
            12    through it, there's no gate or anything like that, 
 
            13    we'll talk to the landowner and see if they need 
 
            14    that approach there.  Basically whatever is there 
 
            15    will be put back. 
 
            16             MR. CHRISTMANN:  Well, just about all of 
 
            17    our approaches have gates on them where we take 
 
            18    cattle in and out and -- 
 
            19             MR. RAYHORN:  Those will remain. 
 
            20             MR. CHRISTMANN:  Those will all be put 
 
            21    back? 
 
            22             MR. RAYHORN:  Yes. 
 
            23             MR. CHRISTMANN:  Okay. 
 
            24             MR. DAEDE:  There are some approaches 
 
            25    along in the middle of this project where there's 
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1    no gates out there.  I think they're approaches 
 
             2    that were in there that were part of the mining 
 
             3    operation when that was an active mine.  My guess 
 
             4    would be some of those won't go back in, but 
 
             5    there's no gates.  It's Game and Fish land on both 
 
             6    sides.  There's no gates there. 
 
             7             MR. CHRISTMANN:  But if it's private 
 
             8    land -- 
 
             9             MR. DAEDE:  You're using those, so, as Rob 
 
            10    said, they would go back in. 
 
            11             MR. FROVART:  The only thing you 
 
            12    mentioned, those Game and Fish areas, you go out 
 
            13    there during pheasant season and stuff, those 
 
            14    approaches get used. 
 
            15             MR. DAEDE:  Yeah, they get parked on. 
 
            16             MR. FROVART:  Yeah, you know, by hunters 
 
            17    that are going out there.  So I guess if they 
 
            18    aren't put back in, they appear that they're not 
 
            19    being used, especially by the old spoil piles 
 
            20    there, then they're going to park in the roadway. 
 
            21             MR. DAEDE:  And that's something that 
 
            22    would be discussed, too. 
 
            23             MR. FROVART:  Can I put another plug in 
 
            24    for that turn lane?  That's twice now. 
 
            25             MR. POPE:  Same plug. 
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1             MR. FROVART:  Now you heard two comments. 
 
             2             MR. POPE:  If there's no more comments, at 
 
             3    this point we want to thank everybody.  And I did 
 
             4    say go ahead and make them.  If you've got somebody 
 
             5    else that you know couldn't make it that would like 
 
             6    to know more, might have wanted to make a comment, 
 
             7    go ahead and take extra copies of the handout and 
 
             8    give it to them, and if they want to comment, they 
 
             9    can make a comment, too, the same way.  You could 
 
            10    get another person to make a comment.  Yes, sir. 
 
            11             MR. MUTH:  Ron Muth, City of Hazen.  Just 
 
            12    a question.  I don't know if you can answer it now 
 
            13    or not.  When is the road scheduled from Hazen out 
 
            14    to 31 east here?  Has you got a schedule for that? 
 
            15             MR. RAYHORN:  It's scheduled for some time 
 
            16    after 2008.  We just have a three-year plan and 
 
            17    it's not in the -- the current plan is 2006, 7 and 
 
            18    8, but it's not scheduled in there, but probably 
 
            19    would be soon after that. 
 
            20             MR. LATIMER:  Latimer.  I would like to 
 
            21    make another comment.  Why don't you use the River 
 
            22    Road for a detour and Beulah will pave it? 
 
            23             MR. POPE:  It's an option. 
 
            24             MR. LATIMER:  It needs it. 
 

25 MR. CHRISTMANN:  Leave that and then take 
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             1    this one out completely. 
 
             2             MR. MUTH:  Well, that's where it used to 
 
             3    be. 
 
             4             MR. CHRISTMANN:  Yes.  It was the main 
 
             5    road from Hazen to Beulah, 
 
             6             MUTH:  Yeah, until the county 
 
             7    commissioners come along and dumped so damn much 
 
             8    coarse scoria on it, you can't hardly drive it. 
 
             9             MR. POPE:  Well, I guess -- I don't think 
 
            10    she can keep up with all this, so thank you guys. 
 
            11    We'll be around here until 8:30, so if you've got 
 
            12    any questions you just want to ask one-on-one, I 
 
            13    would be happy to answer it.  Thank you. 
 
            14             (Concluded at 8:04 p.m., M.D.T., the same 
 
            15    day.) 
 

16 --------- 
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             1                CERTIFICATE OF COURT REPORTER 
 
             2 
 
             3             I, Denise M. Andahl, a Registered 
 
             4    Professional Reporter, 
 
             5             DO HEREBY CERTIFY that I recorded in 
 
             6    shorthand the foregoing proceedings had and made of 
 
             7    record at the time and place hereinbefore 
 
             8    indicated. 
 
             9             I DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY that the 
 
            10    foregoing typewritten pages contain an accurate 
 
            11    transcript of my shorthand notes then and there 
 
            12    taken. 
 
            13             Bismarck, North Dakota, this 11th day of 
 
            14    May, 2006. 
 
            15 
 
            16                    __________________________ 
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PROPOSED PROJECTPROPOSED PROJECT
The proposed project is to rebuild the portion of The proposed project is to rebuild the portion of 
ND 200 from Beulah to Hazen to bring the ND 200 from Beulah to Hazen to bring the 
roadway up to standards for this classification roadway up to standards for this classification 
of highwayof highway

The project would involve grading to widen the The project would involve grading to widen the 
road bed and eliminate deficient sight road bed and eliminate deficient sight 
distancesdistances

The project would be paved to carry traffic, with The project would be paved to carry traffic, with 
final surfacing completed a year laterfinal surfacing completed a year later

 
 

PROPOSED ALTERNATIVESPROPOSED ALTERNATIVES
Alternative #1Alternative #1
Selective grading, widening, mine and Selective grading, widening, mine and 
blend, recycled baseblend, recycled base

Alternative #2Alternative #2
RegradeRegrade entire length, recycled baseentire length, recycled base
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EVALUATION OF ALTERNATIVESEVALUATION OF ALTERNATIVES

 
 
 

ALTERNATIVE #1ALTERNATIVE #1

Corrects grades and sight distancesCorrects grades and sight distances
WideningWidening
Mine and BlendMine and Blend
Salvaged BaseSalvaged Base

Pros Pros ConsCons
Updates geometry and safety          Wetland ImpactsUpdates geometry and safety          Wetland Impacts
Provides strong pavementProvides strong pavement Some R/W impactsSome R/W impacts
Drainage UpdatesDrainage Updates Utility ImpactsUtility Impacts
Less traffic disruption than Alt. 2      No Less traffic disruption than Alt. 2      No imprimpr. to weak. to weak

subgradesubgrade
NonNon--uniform baseuniform base
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ALTERNATIVE #2ALTERNATIVE #2

Corrects grades and sight distancesCorrects grades and sight distances
Salvaged baseSalvaged base

Pros Pros ConsCons
Updates geometric and safety        Wetland impactsUpdates geometric and safety        Wetland impacts
Strong pavementStrong pavement Some R/W impactsSome R/W impacts
Improved Improved subgradesubgrade Utility impactsUtility impacts
Uniform sectionUniform section Slightly higher costSlightly higher cost
Update drainages                            Detours more likelyUpdate drainages                            Detours more likely
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Estimated CostsEstimated Costs

Alternative #1Alternative #1
$6,896,085$6,896,085

Alternative #2Alternative #2
$7,212,605$7,212,605

 
 
 
 

Construction TrafficConstruction Traffic

C
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 R
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Co. Rd 26
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Project
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Co. Rd. 20

Reconstruction 
Areas – Alt. #1
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Items yet to be DeterminedItems yet to be Determined
Alternative #1 or #2?Alternative #1 or #2?
Should a Climbing Lane be Installed?Should a Climbing Lane be Installed?
Should a Detour be set up?Should a Detour be set up?
Need for Additional Need for Additional LightingLighting
Which Turn Lanes to Install.Which Turn Lanes to Install.

-- Co. Rd. 21; WB; left turnCo. Rd. 21; WB; left turn
-- ND 49; NB; right turnND 49; NB; right turn
-- Co. Rd. 19; EB; right turnCo. Rd. 19; EB; right turn
-- Co. Rd. 19; WB; left turnCo. Rd. 19; WB; left turn
-- @ Hazen; EB; right turn@ Hazen; EB; right turn

 
 
 
 

ScheduleSchedule

RegradingRegrading Tentatively Scheduled for Tentatively Scheduled for 
the 2007 Construction Season, with the 2007 Construction Season, with 
the Final Paving to Occur the Year the Final Paving to Occur the Year 
After the GradingAfter the Grading
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QUESTIONS and QUESTIONS and 
COMMENTS?COMMENTS?

 
 
 
SUMMARY OF COMMENTS RECEIVED 
 
The following is a summary of the comments received during and after the meeting concerning the 
items yet to be decided, and any response given: 
 

 The question was asked concerning what the determining factors are on whether a turn lane is 
installed or not? They all seem like a good idea at the locations shown. 

 Various warrants including traffic volumes, accident history, and cost. 
 What will happen to the intersection lighting? 

 The existing lighting will be reset if it is disturbed. No additional lighting will be planned 
unless there is interest from a local entity to provide cost share during construction and maintain and 
operate the new lights. At the time of the meeting there had been no response from the local governing 
bodies, but since that time the cities of Hazen and Beulah have indicated they are not interested in any 
additions. 

 Would detouring the traffic speed up the project? 
 Difficult to say with any certainty. Even if a detour is provided, some traffic will remain on the 
project to provide access to homes and businesses. 

 
 
 
 A Mercer County Commissioner in attendance stated that he’s not concerned about using the 

county roads as detours, but asked about the upkeep. 
 If a road is to be designated as a detour, there would be a pre-inspection of the roadway with 
the county, maintenance during it’s use, repairs as needed, and a post-use inspection. 

 One person commented that traffic should be routed through the project while under 
construction. 

 Two of the comment sheets returned favored Alternative 2 – Complete regrade. 
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 Three people are in favor of a climbing lane west out of Buffalo Coulee, and one comment 
received was to add one to the east also. 

 Four people responded in favor of the right turn lane at Hazen, and two recommend the left turn 
at Co. 21. 
After the meeting Chad stated that since these turn lanes were recommended by the traffic 

operations study, they would be installed. 
 Three responses were in favor of right and left turn lanes at Co. 19. 

 Chad informed me that they will update the traffic counts on this roadway and re-evaluate this 
intersection. 

 There was one response favoring right and left turn lanes at Co. 9 and at RDO. 
 
There were some other comments and questions that do not relate to the decision items: 
 

 Is there a time frame difference for the construction time between Alternative 1 and 2? 
This is difficult to give a definite answer to, not knowing how different contractors would 
approach the job. 

 Is the life expectancy of either Alternative higher? 
Both sections were designed for a 20 year life expectancy. 

 The County has Co. 27 north of Hazen on the schedule to be reworked in 2007. 
 What will happen to the approaches? 

In general, if one exists it will be replaced. If there is an approach with no gate and it appears 
it is not being used, the landowner will be contacted to see if it is needed. There are several 
approaches from the mining operations that have no gates, and now are adjacent to ND G&F 
lands. The comment was made from an attendee that some of these approaches are used for 
parking during hunting season. Therefore, these may need to be evaluated on whether to 
eliminate them all, or leave some to get the parked vehicles off the roadway.  
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EXHIBIT 1 - ADVERTISEMENT: 
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EXHIBIT 2 - HANDOUT: 
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EXHIBIT 3 - BOARDS ON DISPLAY: 
Alternative #1: Selective Grading & Widening:Alternative #1: Selective Grading & Widening:

•• Corrects grades and sight distancesCorrects grades and sight distances

•• WideningWidening

•• Mine and BlendMine and Blend

•• Salvaged BaseSalvaged Base

- Non-uniform base

- No improvement to weak subgrade- Less traffic disruption than Alt. 2

- Utility impacts- Drainage Updates

- Some R/W impacts- Provides strong pavement

- Wetland impacts- Updates geometric & safety

CONSCONSPROSPROS

 
 

Alternative #2: Full Widening:Alternative #2: Full Widening:

•• Corrects grades and sight distancesCorrects grades and sight distances

•• Salvaged BaseSalvaged Base

- Detours more likely- Update drainages

- Slightly higher cost- Uniform section

- Utility impacts- Improved subgrade

- Some R/W impacts- Strong pavement

- Wetland impacts- Updates geometric & safety

CONSCONSPROSPROS
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Items Yet to be Determined:Items Yet to be Determined:

•• Alternative #1 or #2?Alternative #1 or #2?

•• Should a Climbing Lane be Installed?Should a Climbing Lane be Installed?

•• Should a Detour be set up?Should a Detour be set up?

•• Which Turn Lanes to Install:Which Turn Lanes to Install:

•• Should Additional Lighting be Should Additional Lighting be 
Included?Included?

- EB right turn at Hazen

- WB left turn at County Road 19

- EB right turn at County Road 19

- NB right turn at ND 49

- WB left turn at County Road 21
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EXHIBIT 4 - ATTENDANCE AND WRITTEN COMMENTS: 
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Memo 
To: Lonny Adler, President; Hazen City Commission, Box 717, Hazen, ND  58545 

From: Loren Daede, P.E., Project Manager 

CC: Chad Orn 

Date:  5/4/06 

Re: Project # AC-HPP-5-200(010)143; Regrade, Base, and Surfacing of ND 200 from Beulah 
to Hazen; IE#B05-50 

Lonny- 
 The eastbound right turn lane at the turnoff on the west end of Hazen was shown as a 
decision item at the public hearing. In a Traffic Operations Study prepared by the NDDOT for 
this project, the right turn lane in question was recommended to be installed. I was informed 
by NDDOT personnel at that meeting that if the Study indicated a “do-build” recommendation 
it will be incorporated into the plans. 
 A westbound left turn lane is beyond the project limits and will be taken into 
consideration on a future project.  
 Thank you for your input, and if you have other questions or concerns, please contact 
me.   

Interstate 
Engineering, Inc. 
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